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BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

October 28, 2020 – 6:30pm – Virtual Meeting 
 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

The Village of Marvin Board of Adjustment will hold a special meeting on Wednesday, October 28, 2020 at 6:30pm at Village Hall 
(10004 New Town Road) to elect officers, approve minutes, and conduct an orientation for Board members in preparation for an 
upcoming meeting. The Board will also select a future meeting date to hear a variance case. 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
1. Call to Order & Determination of Quorum 
2. Adoption of the Agenda 
3. Election of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson 
4. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings: 9/2/15 

HEARING OF CASES 
 No cases  

 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

1. Board of Adjustment Member Orientation Rohit Ammanamanchi & Austin W. Yow 
2. Selection of Meeting Date to Hear Variance Case #20-12532 Board of Adjustment 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This notice is issued on this 23rd day of October 2020 pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina 143-
318.12(a)(b). Contact the Village Clerk at (704) 843-1680 ext. 102 for additional information. 
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CALL TO ORDER/DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 
Chairperson Patton called the special meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Quorum was determined with the following members in attendance:  Chairperson Terri Patton 
and David Humphries and alternate members Joe Barbara and Tom Traub. 
 
Regular members Mike Farley and Jim Siwik were absent. 
 
The following staff was present: 
Lisa Thompson, Administrator/Senior Planner. 
Melody Graham, Clerk. 
Bill Brown, Board Attorney. 
 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Chairperson Patton moved agenda item 3 (Adoption of Minutes) to follow item 5 (Board Member 
Training). 
 
 Motion: Mr. Humphries moved to adopt the agenda as amended. 
 Vote: The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OF CASE #15-11537 SEEKING A VARIANCE FOR AN IRREGULAR SHAPED 
LOT  
 
 Motion: Mr. Humphries moved to open the public hearing on Case #15-11537 

seeking a variance for an irregular shaped lot. 
 Vote: The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Mr. Brown gave a brief review of the proceedings for the Board.  He explained:  Before the 
Board begins discussing any of the details of the case, we will have to swear witnesses in.  This 
is a trial-like proceeding.  It doesn’t strictly follow the rules of evidence, but you will have to 
base your decisions on the competent evidence you hear tonight.  You will see documentary 
evidence and will hear testimony.  Your decision will be based on that.  This is fairly simple.  
Variances are requests to take a requirement of your code and amend it.  This is only being done 
due to the unique circumstances which you will hear tonight.  You are not changing text, you are 
just changing how it is applied to this particular property owner.  You are welcome to ask 
questions in order to gain additional information that you feel you need.  This is typically how it 
works.  Staff will present testimony first, followed by the applicant.  If you are satisfied with the 
information before you, then you may close the hearing and move onto the deliberation of each 
of the four findings.     
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Mr. Brown reviewed the findings of fact.  He explained:  The first finding is 1) Unnecessary 
hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance.  It shall not be necessary to 
demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.  
This is something the Board discussed in our last training session.  This language was changed 
by the legislature in order to hone in on the unnecessary hardship portion.   So you need to think 
about it from the perspective of if there an unnecessary hardship.      
 
The second hardship is 2) The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, 
such as location, size or topography.  Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well 
as hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general 
public, may not be the basis for granting a variance. This one is pretty straight forward.   
 
The third hardship is 3) The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the 
property owner.  The act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that 
may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship. Again, all 
of these findings were slightly amended by the legislature two years ago.  This language is in 
there because there was a lot of cases where someone knew there was a survey problem when 
they bought the property.  Some decisions were being made that this was a self-inflicted hardship 
and was the basis for denying variances.  So this addressed that issue. 
 
The final hardship is 4) The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of 
the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.   You will 
need to take the evidence that you hear tonight and apply it to each of these four findings.  
Because you are varying the application of the code to a piece of property, by State Statute it has 
to be by super-majority vote.  This is the four-fifths rule.  This is a five member Board and only 
four members are in attendance, so all four of you will have to vote on each of the findings and 
will have to vote after making the findings to approve the granting of the variance. If for some 
reason as we go through the findings and apply the evidence and vote and there are not four 
votes for any particular finding, we will continue on and do all of the findings so we have a 
complete record.   
 
Mr. Humphries stated:  For the record, he knows Mike and Denise as they live in the same 
neighborhood, although in different sections.  He respects them very much, but they are not 
necessarily close friends.  They might see each other every few years at the neighborhood picnic 
and will have a casual conversation.  This relationship will not influence his decision on the 
hearing. 
 
Mr. Brown stated:  Are you stating that you will remain open-minded and able to make a fair 
decision based on the evidence you hear tonight?  Mr. Humphries replied yes.   
 
Ms. Patton asked if Mr. Humphries had any financial interest in the outcome of the decision.  
Mr. Humphries stated no. 
 
The Board agreed there was no conflict in Mr. Humphries participation in the hearing. 
 
Mr. Brown swore in Lisa Thompson, Village Planner and Mike Murphy, applicant.  
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Testimony 
 
Ms. Thompson:  Staff has received an application from property owner Michael Murphy for a 

variance to allow an irregular shaped lot.  The application is found in your packet as 
Attachment 1 and is entered as Exhibit 1 (Staff Exhibit 1).  Staff offers the following 
findings:  The property is located at 3218 Sandalwood Drive, parcel 06-213-054.  It is a total 
of 7.062 acres.  I would like to enter into record the recorded plat from plat book A, page 
118B with the subject property highlighted in yellow (Staff Exhibit 2).  The property located 
at 3218 Sandalwood Drive is zoned R-Marvin Residential and has and existing single family 
residence.  A copy of the aerial map and zoning map is entered as Exhibit 3 (Staff Exhibit 3). 
The property owner would like to subdivide his property into 2 lots that are approximately 3 
and 4 acres in size.  A survey can be found as staff exhibit 4 (Staff Exhibit 4).  Because of the 
location of the house and the existing shape of the lot on a cul-de-sac, once subdivided an 
irregular shaped lot is formed.  Section 150.015 of the Code of Ordinances defines an 
irregular shaped lot as a lot with more than four sides, a lot that is not rectangular in shape in 
nature or a lot with a side or rear lot lines that are not substantially straight.  Section 150.063 
of the Village Ordinances prohibit irregularly shaped lots, except to address steep 
topography, streams, bodies of water, wetlands, conservation land and the like.  On August 5, 
2015 a variance application was submitted by Mr. Murphy for an irregular shaped lot.  The 
applicant sites the location of the existing home as a hardship encountered in complying with 
his covenants, which require a minimum 3 acre lot.  All adjoining property owners have been 
properly notified of this variance request.  If approved, the property will still have to go 
through the subdivision ordinance process, which includes Planning Board recommendation 
and Council approval.  As a side note, back in May of 2014, the Planning Board and Council 
added a text amendment which defined an irregular shaped lot.  Prior to that text amendment 
the old ordinance said ‘all lots shall be rectangular to the greatest degree feasible, generally 
side lot lines shall be at right angles and irregular shaped lots are discouraged.  So this text 
amendment from back in 2014 defined the definition that I read to you tonight, which further 
restricts the property owner from subdividing the lot.  Myself and the applicant are here to 
answer any questions. 

Ms. Patton:  Is that all? 
Ms. Thompson: Yes. 
Ms. Patton:  I’d like to hear from the applicant so they can explain what they are attempting to 

do. 
Mr. Murphy:  Just to back up a little bit.   He doesn’t know if Ms. Thompson has shared with the 

Board the information that he providing showing what is driving this request.  They have 
lived here since 1997.  This was probably pre-Marvin, depending on when Marvin started.  
They are long-term residents.  The motivation for subdividing this lot is that at some time we 
are thinking that we may want to have our children in close proximity, possibly to build a 
home on that lot.  That is the driving force behind the request.  He got in touch with Ms. 
Thompson, he’s not sure how long ago, but it was quite some time as this has been an on-
going process.  If we draw the lot line on the plat that you see as a rectangular lot, basically 
we end up with a lot that is 2.6 acres, or something like that.  That was our initial intent.  The 
problem that we run into with that – and we’d be happy to do that, but where we have the 
problem is that our Homeowners Covenants in Providence Estates – in order to subdivide, 
and we have a lot that is subdividable, but all are not, but because our lot is 7 acres we are 
able to go ahead and subdivide.  Our Homeowners Covenants has another requirement that 
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requires lots to be a minimum of 3 acres.  This is where the conflict comes in that the 
Homeowners requires 3 acres.  Everything else with this lot as you see it drawn is in full 
compliance with the setbacks and everything else with Marvin according to Ms. Thompson.  
Everything else is fine.  It’s just that to be able to pick up another quarter to half an acre we 
need to draw the lines a little differently, as is shown.  There is really no impact on anybody 
to do this.  I have emails from all our neighbors agreeing that this is not a problem and in full 
support of this.  It’s pretty straight forward and again we are requesting a minor subdivision 
with a minor variance that just tweaks the lot lines a little bit.  We realize that even though 
there are already existing irregular lots, you can’t use this as a reason to create another one.  
But none the less that is the case.  There are several, several irregular lots in Marvin and in 
Providence Estates.  I guess I would say that it would seem to me that whatever the reason is 
for this prohibition on irregular lots, I really doubt that there was any thought given to 
something like this.  I would think there would be other reasons for not allowing an irregular 
lot.  This is our request.  We want to get the property out.  We are going to re-deed the 
property and he doesn’t want the lot as part of our refinance for our new loan.  That really 
creates a hardship of sorts and if we can avoid that we certainly want to do that.  Does 
anybody have any questions?  

Ms. Patton:  Why do you want to subdivide? 
Mr. Murphy:  We want to subdivide in the event that our kids might want to build a house there 

as we get older.  They could be caretakers.  They could build a house and live right there on 
that lot, close to us.  That is the reason. 

Ms. Patton:  You don’t plan to sell this property? 
Mr. Murphy:  No.  We may never sell it. 
Ms. Patton:  So, if you aren’t going to sell it, aren’t you still going to have to refinance the whole 

thing? 
Mr. Murphy:  No. Not the way the loan is.  That is a separate parcel.  The one we will have with 

our home will be in the new loan as a separate parcel.   
Ms. Patton:  So you want to subdivide, but you are not selling.   
Mr. Murphy:  Right. 
Ms. Thompson:  To build another home, they would need to two lots. 
Ms. Patton:  But they don’t even know when or if they’ll ever do that. 
Ms. Thompson:  That doesn’t matter. 
Ms. Patton:  I know, I just am trying to understand the hardship here.  Is there anything on here, 

I’m going back to Chapter 150.063, the second paragraph on the first one, where it says 
‘irregular shaped lots shall be prohibited except to address natural features such as steep 
topography, streams, lakes or others bodies of water, wetlands, conservations lands, or the 
like’… Is there any of those on the property? 

Ms. Thompson:  Not to my knowledge. 
Mr. Murphy:  It is a sloped lot.  Very much so.  And there is a runoff kind of a culvert that goes 

under the road that moves the water off there.   
Ms. Patton:  That’s up by the road? 
Mr. Murphy:  No, it runs through.   
Ms. Patton:  It runs through your lot? 
Mr. Murphy:  Yes. 
 
Ms. Thompson stepped out of the hearing to print a topo map of the property. 
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Mr. Brown:  Do you mind if I ask you a few technical questions while we wait for Ms. 

Thompson to return? 
Mr. Murphy:  Sure. 
Mr. Brown:  In terms of defining this line that’s going to subdivide the lot, were there decisions 

on where that line was going to be made by your surveyor? 
Mr. Murphy:  No.  
Mr. Brown:  Did you instruct your surveyor where to put the line? 
Mr. Murphy:  I told, well, here’s what happened.   I was informed about an irregular lot after we 

drew the lot line.  So then we drew that lot to conform. 
Mr. Brown:  So in terms of this line varying, was that done just to be able to achieve the 3 acre 

size minimum you just testified in your covenants? 
Mr. Murphy:  Yes.   
Mr. Brown:  Does it follow any natural features or anything identifiable on the ground or is it 

just a line to achieve 3 acres? 
Mr. Murphy:  Well, without being able to see it, the answer to your question, I could just say yes, 

but I’m going to be honest with you.  The answer to your question is technically no.  We 
could only build the house right here because the land slopes in all directions.  I don’t know 
if that helps you. 

Ms. Patton:  And the buffer area?  That’s the only place you could build a house? 
Mr. Murphy:  No.  We can’t build a house in the buffer area from my understanding.   
Ms. Patton:  It seemed like you pointed to the buffer area.  I’m just trying to figure out where. 
Mr. Murphy:  The house would go in this area. 
Mr. Brown:  The other technical question I had.  I know you testified about restrictions and 

covenants in your neighborhood. 
Mr. Murphy:  Yes. 
Mr. Brown:  Did you happen to bring a copy of those or do you have anything that can verify 

what those covenants are? 
Mr. Murphy:  I did not bring one with me.  Ms. Thompson might have that. 
Mr. Brown:  I know you mentioned neighbors have responded by email saying they are not 

opposed, but unfortunately that is hearsay, so the Board cannot consider that all, if you are 
offering that testimony for the truth of what they are saying, but they are not here to say it.  
Do you have any neighbors who were planning on being present? 

Mr. Murphy:  No.  I didn’t understand that. 
Mr. Humphries:  Mike, for your property, track 45, what is the about the property that the 

application of the Ordinance causes you undue hardship? 
Mr. Murphy:  We can’t comply with our Homeowner Covenants. 
Mr. Humphries:  If you subdivide. 
Mr. Murphy:  Right. 
Mr. Humphries:  But if you don’t subdivide… So this is a personal circumstance, not something 

about the property that causes you the hardship. 
Mr. Murphy:  I guess.   
Mr. Humphries:  Because you want to subdivide.  
Mr. Murphy:  Right.  For the reasons stated.  I can’t get three acres with a straight line. So that’s 

the only reason we’re trying to pick up another half of an acres, with lines instead of going 
like this, go like that.  It is straightforward. 



VILLAGE OF MARVIN 
Board of Adjustment Special Meeting Minutes 
9/2/2015    Page 6 of 12 
 
 
Mr. Brown:  Just one other question about your covenants.  It’s relevant to what you were just 

discussing.  Are there procedures in your Homeowners Covenants that allow waivers or 
exceptions or amendments to the three acre requirement? 

Mr. Murphy:  There are. 
Mr. Brown:  Have you pursued those avenues? 
Mr. Murphy:  No. 
Mr. Brown:  Why not? 
Mr. Murphy:  Well, because we live in Providence Estates.  I don’t know if you know John 

Baresich. 
Mr. Brown:  I know nothing about him. 
Mr. Murphy:  Well, you’d have to talk to him.  Our Covenants, and I can’t even speak to this 

accurately, other than to say that there has been a question about a lot of things in Providence 
Estates with regard to the roads, are they public, this…that… I’m not doing it justice.  But 
there are a lot of questions with regard to what is do-able and what isn’t do-able.  Who is in 
the Covenants and who is not in the Covenants.  The property was subdivided in 1982 by the 
Grahams when there was nothing out here.   Again, I’m not doing this justice and I’m not 
speaking as a legal person.  But there were things in there that were just so loose in terms of 
what is and what isn’t that to answer your question why they are there, why I did not pursue 
that, is because it just opens up… 

Mr. Brown:  So you haven’t floated up a trial balloon or anything?  You have not had any 
communication with the HoA? 

Mr. Murphy:  Well, I had to the extent that John Baresich who is the president of the HoA and is 
very familiar with this.  Ms. Thompson knows him very well.  That’s how I know this stuff.  
That there is a lot of issues that are still kind of… I wanted to take what I thought was the 
easy way. 

Mr. Brown:  Things are complicated with the law and variances are disfavored in the law and are 
rarely granted.   

Mr. Murphy:  I need to ask why this irregular lot was put into the code initially.  What was the 
purpose? 

Mr. Brown:  You’ll need staff testimony for that and she’s not here right now.   
Mr. Murphy:  Do you think it would have anything to do with this?   
Mr. Brown:  I really can’t answer that. 
Mr. Murphy:  I mean from a distance, just as a practical matter.  Do you think that a prohibition 

against an irregular lot is something that the Village of Marvin put in place to prevent people 
like us from doing what we are trying to do. 

Mr. Brown:  Again, we’re not offering facts or evidence.  You can ask staff that.  Obviously she 
testified that they have had that in the Ordinance for a while, and they just amended that in 
2014, so they must’ve had something on their minds.  

 
Ms. Thompson returned to the hearing and submitted the topographical map. 
 
Mr. Murphy:  Ms. Thompson, we were just discussing the Providence Estates Homeowners 

Covenants and I wondered if you have a copy of that document. 
Ms. Thompson:   I do not have a copy, but I did read them and there is a 3 acre minimum.  
Mr. Brown:  We have subsequently been discussing whether there is a procedure for exceptions 

to the HoA Covenants and Mr. Murphy has testified that he believes there is but that he has 
not pursued that due to a number of issues. 
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Ms. Thompson:  There are a few sets of Covenants for different lots within the subdivision.   
Mr. Brown:  His current line of questions, which we are not supposed to answer but you may as 

you are under oath, has to do with the origin of these original irregular lot provisions and the 
2014 amendment.  Do you know the reasoning and purposes that went into those text 
provisions? 

Ms. Thompson:  The Zoning Administrator at the time wasn’t strictly reading the Ordinances 
maybe the way they should have been so we do have a lot of recent subdivisions with 
irregular shaped lots because the zoning text says ‘they shall be rectangular to the greatest 
degree feasible’.  There was never a strict definition of what an irregular shaped lot was.  
And it says ‘discouraged’, so there was no restriction.  

Mr. Brown:  So your testimony is that the 2014 amendments was to make this text clearer and 
stricter? 

Ms. Thompson:  Correct. 
Mr. Brown:  I think Mr. Murphy’s other question that we couldn’t answer and shouldn’t answer 

was what the desire for regular lots was or what was preferable about them. 
Ms. Thompson:  The desire was for better planning with lot layouts and setbacks. 
Mr. Brown:  Easier to convey, easier to describe and easier to provide services to? 
Ms. Thompson:  Correct.   
Mr. Brown:  Please describe the document you just distributed. 
Ms. Thompson:  Chairperson Patton asked about the topography of the land.  This will be exhibit 

5 (Exhibit 5).  It shows 2’ contour lines and you can see that if you follow the way the lines 
are faced that’s the low point and as the lines get tighter, that shows the steeper topography in 
this area. 

Mr. Brown:  It looks like we have an Indian mound over here at 648 and we gradually taper off, 
tighter and tighter. 

Mr. Barbara:  So your house is on the lower end of the property? Has that side of the property 
ever been subject to floodplain regulations or anything like that? 

Mr. Murphy:  Not that I’m aware of. 
Mr. Humphries:  How is your piece of property different from anyone else’s that would put you 

in a unique situation? 
Mr. Murphy:  Not everybody can subdivide.  We can subdivide because we have 7 acres.  I know 

why you’re asking that question.  Again, just to be very candid with you, I just want to get 
these lots separate for financial reasons.  I don’t think this imposes any hardship on anybody.  
I’m getting a little frustrated with this process.  And it is the process, so I do understand that.  
But why would you object to this, if there is an objection, maybe there isn’t.  And what 
would it be?  Because I want to be able to answer that objection if there is one. 

Mr. Humphries:  For myself, I don’t object to you doing it.  But as a member of the Board of 
Adjustment, we have certain … 

Mr. Murphy:  Reasons, you have to have reasons. 
Mr. Humprhies:  Regulations and statutes that we have to follow.   
Mr. Murphy:  I’m not verbalizing that very well.   
Mr. Humphries:  So, what you would need to do, is to show us that there is something about your 

property that’s different from other properties around you that forces you into a situation 
where you are experiencing this unnecessary hardship.  That is a hardship and it’s 
unnecessary.  Those are the two criteria and that is a particular thing.  But it also has to be 
something, to just clarify and I want to say this again, that is peculiar to your lot.  Correct me 
if I’m wrong on any of this, but that can’t be something that is the result of your action.  So 
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as much as I like you guys, we have to answer to these things, otherwise, we haven’t done 
due diligence.  

Mr. Murphy:  I guess I see myself as the customer.  I’m a taxpayer.   
Mr. Humphries:  Right. 
Mr. Murphy:  I’m trying to follow the process.  I’m trying to tell you the facts.  I have told you 

the facts.  Based on that I would think that you would find a way, at least I hope you would, 
as a servant to accommodate me.  That’s all I’m asking.  So whatever that is, our house is in 
such a … I mean I would have no problem… we are complying with everything else that 
Marvin requires.  Everything else.  Except I can’t comply with the regular lot because of 
where our house is.  Otherwise, we wouldn’t even be here.  The only reason it’s irregular is 
because of the location of our house. 

Mr. Barbara:  I have a quick question.  So is the bigger question the size of the lot or the shape of 
the lot?  What are we looking at? 

Mr. Brown:  Size is an issue for the HoA.  It’s a restrictive covenant issue.  The Village doesn’t 
enforce private covenants.   They are not part of zoning and are not enforced by the town.  
That’s just something that he has testified that he has in his covenants.  It is the configuration 
that you’ve read in the staff report and heard in the staff testimony, and in the presentation of 
Section 150.015 and Section 150.063.   

Ms. Thompson:  The Village Ordinance requires 1 acre lots.  He has a 3 acre and a 4 acre lot, so 
the size meets the Village Ordinances.  It is the shape of the lots. 

Mr. Brown:  It is a fairly strict mission.  It doesn’t take into account 7 acre lots or whatever size 
lot it is.  Nor does it take into account lots that are down in the bulb end of a cul-de-sac.  It’s 
just that this is the way the Village wants lots to look.  And the way the lot currently is, 
because of the street and it’s curvature in the bulb, you have basically sufficiently when that 
lot was drawn out, other than meeting the street, it meets those criteria. And the testimony, if 
you go back to Exhibit 5, with the way the lines are drawn to help meet that 3 acre 
requirement, if you just came straight across, you would make a pretty nice rectangular lot 
for where the house is and it would probably suffice for the other one, again with the 
curvature of the road.  But that’s not what’s happening.  He’s following the driveway and 
zigging and zagging around.  

Mr. Murphy:  I’m not thinking like you.  You are thinking from a legal stance.  I understand that.  
But this lot is totally wooded.  And I’ll say this so everyone knows.  I’m not trying to do this 
subversively.  As far as a hardship, if I don’t get this done, it could create a financial 
hardship.   

Mr. Humphries:  Can you show that?  We need to see that. 
Mr. Murphy:  I’m not going to disclose all my financial information to you.   
Mr. Humphries:  I understand that, but you haven’t given us anything along those lines.   
Mr. Murphy:  Alright. Here’s what I’m talking about.  We’re going to do a reverse mortgage on 

our property.  I could take this out later, but it is a nightmare in a reverse mortgage to 
separate a parcel.  I want to get it out, have my property appraised and have it stand alone.  
What that will do is that will help create an additional asset for me outside of the reverse 
mortgage.  That is my whole motivation.  Not begin able to do that is a disadvantage.  It is a 
hardship potentially if down the road I need some money or want to sell or whatever.  That’s 
why I’m doing it.  We want to stay there.  We don’t want to move.  So if something happens 
to us our kids can build a house here and take care of us.  Who knows?  I’m just trying to be 
as prepared as possible for the eventualities that everybody in the room, sooner or later, come 
to.  That’s it.  I don’t know what else to say. 
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Ms. Patton:  Has staff heard from any of the neighbors that abut his property? 
Ms. Thompson:  We had one neighbor call in asking questions about what the sign was posted 

for. 
Ms. Patton:  Have you heard from this Luther Richardson? 
Ms. Thompson:  No.  
Mr. Brown:  Her testimony would be hearsay as well.  
Ms. Patton:  I’m sorry? 
Mr. Brown:  Her testimony would be hearsay.  Even if she had heard from him, and told us what 

they said, that would be hearsay as she couldn’t speak for them without them being sworn.  
Ms. Patton:  I was wondering if they had sent an email or anything. 
Mr. Brown:  But even if they had… 
Ms. Patton:  That’s fine.  The thing I’m looking at here is it looks like that out of all the 

neighbors, it looks like the only one who would really be affected would be this one next 
door, where instead of only having one neighbor, they would have two.  But I don’t see how 
it would affect any of the other neighbors.  You mentioned that you purchased it in 1997? 

Mr. Murphy:  Yes.  It was 1996 or 1997. 
Ms. Patton:  So you purchased the property when the Village of Marvin… Do you know when 

the Village of Marvin annexed it?  Or when it came into Marvin? 
Ms. Thompson:  I believe it was around 2003-2004. 
Mr. Murphy:  There wasn’t a Village of Marvin when we bought it. 
Ms. Thompson:  Marvin incorporated in 1994, but this neighborhood was annexed in 2003 or 

2004. 
Mr. Brown:  Before we leave this testimony, did Marvin exercise extraterritorial zoning 

jurisdiction? 
Ms. Thompson:  No.  It was a voluntary annexation. 
Mr. Brown:  But were they zoning that area 1 mile out? 
Ms. Thompson:  They were not. 
Mr. Brown:  So the subdivision was developed under County zoning. 
Ms. Thompson:  Correct. 
Mr. Brown:  Does the County zoning ordinance require rectangular and not irregular lots? 
Ms. Thompson:  I do not know. 
Ms. Patton:  Does anyone have any additional questions? 
Mr. Brown:  Is there any additional evidence for the Board?  Is there any additional information 

or questions before we close this hearing.  Any additional evidence the Board needs to hear 
or see? 

Mr. Barbara:  Did you ever consider changing the direction of the driveway so you could have a 
cleaner line?  Did you really look at how this thing could be carved to see how you could 
slice this thing?  It looks like there are a couple of ways that you could slice this to maybe 
achieve somewhat of a rectangular lot.  I’m not a surveyor, but just looking at this it seems 
possible.  I’m just curious. 

Mr. Murphy:  We have not.  I think if you saw the lot you would see why the driveway is where 
it is. It’s due to the topography and how it comes in on a high end down there.  It wouldn’t be 
practical.  

Mr. Barbara:  Ok.  I think from a hardship standpoint, just in my opinion, it’s more plausible to 
say that it is a financial hardship than it is to say you want to give it to your kids or you want 
your kids to live there.  That’s all pie in the sky.  Anything could happen.  You could turn 
around and sell it in 6 months.  The financial piece, the situation you are in, the age you are 
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at, I think of my parents.  You get to an age where you want to set yourself up for the rest of 
your life.  I get the plausibility on the financial piece.  It would’ve been great if you came in 
here with someone to testify for you, like your neighbors, or maybe some photographs where 
you could show us certain things.  I’m a visual person and this is a little tough.  My personal 
opinion is some plausibility on the financial piece.   

Mr. Brown:  Can we close the fact finding and then start on the deliberation?  Are there anymore 
facts to be presented? 

 
The Board agreed to close the fact finding. 
 
 Motion: Mr. Humphries moved to close the public hearing on Case #15-11537 

seeking a variance for an irregular shaped lot. 
 Vote: The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Deliberation 
 
Ms. Patton asked about the testimony on the financial piece of the hearing.  Mr. Brown 
explained:    That was Mr. Murphy’s testimony and he has the necessary personal knowledge.  
The testimony is certainly competent.  There is no hearsay issue with this.  There is no problem 
with that information. 
 
Mr. Traub requested a review of the Findings of Fact and how the Board should go through that 
process.   Mr. Brown explained that this is the most difficult part of each case.  He reviewed the 
current required findings as they stand in the Statutes, and highlighted sections a through e under 
finding 1, explaining that these are what the Board will consider to determine hardship under 
finding 1.   
 
Findings of Fact 
 
Mr. Humphries stated:  He is having difficulty seeing anything that could be deemed as an 
unnecessary hardship.  It would have to be something that is unique to the property and it can’t 
be a result of the applicants own action.  He does not see this with the application.  Ms. Patton 
and Mr. Traub agreed. 
 
Mr. Barbara stated:  He is inclined to say yes on the first finding.  He sees the lifestyle changes 
as an important factor.  The reverse mortgage and the fact that the applicant has reached 
retirement age has caused the need for the variance.  People make decisions to try to better their 
financial position.  He sees definite plausibility for a financial hardship.  He sees the need for a 
reverse mortgage as a circumstance that has been thrust upon him. 
 
Mr. Barbara asked about Finding 2 and hardships that result from conditions peculiar to the 
property.  Mr. Humphries stated that there is nothing specific to tract 45 or 46, versus tract 47 
that would create this conflict between the tract of land and the ordinance.    
 
The Board agreed that they were ready to begin voting on the Findings of Fact. 
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1.   Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the Ordinance.  It shall not 

be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be 
made of the property.   

 
Vote:    yes 1 no 3 
 (Mr. Barbara) (Ms. Patton, Mr. Humphries, Mr. Traub) 
 
2.   The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size 

or topography.  Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships 
resulting from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may 
not be the basis for granting a variance.  
 

Vote:    yes 0 no 4 
  (Ms. Patton, Mr. Barbara, Mr. Humphries, Mr. Traub) 
 
3.   The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner.  The 

act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the 
granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.  

 
Vote:    yes 1 no 3 
 (Mr. Barbara) (Ms. Patton, Mr. Humphries, Mr. Traub) 
 
4.   The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the ordinance, such 

that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.   
 
Vote:    yes 0 no 4 
  (Ms. Patton, Mr. Barbara, Mr. Humphries, Mr. Farley) 
 
Mr. Brown explained:  The four findings require a super majority of the Board.  None of the findings 
achieved this, so the motion should be to deny the variance. 
 
 Motion: Mr. Humphries moved to deny Variance #15-11537 based on the Findings 

of Fact not being successful. 
 Vote: The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER TRAINING 
 
Mr. Brown gave a brief training session to the Board.  He reviewed Board procedures and NC 
Statutes.  He presented recent Board of Adjustment cases that went on to the Appeals Court and 
discussed them briefly.   
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ADOPTION OF THE 3/31/2010 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES AND THE 3/12/2014 SPECIAL 
MEETING MINUTES 
 
 Motion: Mr. Humphries moved to adopt the 3/12/2014 Special Meeting Minutes as 

presented. 
 Vote: The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Mr. Humphries had corrections to the 3/31/2010 minutes as follows: 

• Page 6 – correct word ‘re-emphasis’ to ‘re-emphasize’ 
• Page 10 – add a question mark to follow Alice Fraedrich’s comment ‘Ever?’ 
• Page 22 – correct word ‘churches’ to ‘church’s’ 

 
 Motion: Mr. Humphries moved to adopt the 3/31/2010 Special Meeting Minutes as 

amended. 
 Vote: The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Motion: Chairperson Patton moved to adjourn at 9:01 p.m. 
 Vote: The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
 

 
 
Adopted: _________________________ 

 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chairman 

  
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Austin W. Yow 
Village Clerk & Assistant to the Administrator 
Village of Marvin 
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I.  GENERAL RULES 
 
 The Zoning Board of Adjustment (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”) shall be governed by 
the terms of Chapter 160A, Article 19, part 3 of the General Statutes of North Carolina and by the 
Village of Marvin Zoning Ordinance.  All members of the Board shall thoroughly familiarize 
themselves with these laws.  The Board, being a public body, shall at all times conduct meetings in 
conformity with the applicable Open Meetings Law statutes. 
 
 

II.  OFFICERS & DUTIES 
 
A. Appointments 
 
 The Board of Adjustment shall consist of five (5) regular members and two (2) alternate 
members, each appointed by the Village Council. Persons may be appointed to the same position for 
successive terms.   
 
 The alternate members of the Board shall be requested to attend all regular and special meetings 
and shall be able to cast a vote when a regular member of the Board is absent or if any Board member 
has a conflict of interest. 
 
 Once appointed by the Village Council, the alternate members shall be assigned numbers “1” 
and “2” by the Chairman. The following system shall be employed for using alternate members: 
 

Member “1” shall first be asked to serve.  If he/she is absent or has a conflict of interest, 
Member “2” shall be asked to serve.  If Member “1” does serve, Member “2” will be first asked 
to serve at the next meeting.  If Member “2” does serve, Member “1” will be asked to serve at 
the next meeting.  If Member “2” is asked to serve, but is absent or has a conflict of interest, 
Member “1” shall serve.   

 
B. Elections 
 
 A Chairman and a Vice-Chairman shall be elected by majority vote of the regular Board 
membership.  Each officer shall serve for a one (1) year term but may be elected by the Board 
membership for successive terms to the same office.  Annually, at the regular meeting of the Board held 
in the month of January, a Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall be elected.  Each officer shall serve until 
relieved of his duties as herein provided. 
 
C. Duties 
 
 The Chairman shall decide upon all points of order and procedure, subject to these rules, unless 
directed otherwise by a majority of the Board in session at the time.  The Chairman shall appoint any 
committees found necessary to investigate any matters before the Board.  The Vice-Chairman shall 
serve as acting Chairman in the absence of the Chairman, and at such times he/she shall have the same 
powers and duties as the Chairman. 
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D. Secretary 
 
 The Village Council shall arrange to have secretarial duties performed for the Board.  Said 
persons(s) (hereafter referred to as the “Secretary”), subject to the direction of the Chairman, shall take 
minutes and keep all records.  The Secretary shall conduct all correspondence of the Board, arrange for 
all public notices required to be given, notify members of pending meetings and their agenda, notify 
parties to cases before the Board of its decision on such cases, and generally supervise the clerical work 
of the Board.  The Secretary shall keep in a permanent volume the minutes of every meeting of the 
Board.  These shall show the record of all important facts pertaining to each meeting and hearing, every 
resolution acted upon by the Board, and all votes of members of the Board upon any resolution or upon 
the final determination of any question, indicating the names of members absent or failing to vote.  If the 
Secretary is chosen from outside the membership of the Board, he/she shall not be eligible to vote upon 
any matter.  The minutes and records of the Board of Adjustment shall be kept in the Office of the 
Village Clerk. 
 
 

III.  RULES OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 
 
A. Removal 
 
 Members of the Board may be removed for cause, including violation of the rules stated below 
herein. 
 
B. Attendance 
 
 In order for the Board to carry out its duties and responsibilities, it is necessary for all members 
to attend the meetings.  If any regular member is absent for two (2) consecutive meetings, the Chairman 
may direct the Secretary to notify such member in writing of his absences and if such member fails to 
attend the next meeting, the Board of Adjustment may, by a majority vote of the remaining regular and 
alternate members, request that the position be vacated and also request that a replacement be made by 
the Village Council. 
 
C. Conflicts of Interest 
 
 No member of the Board shall seek to influence a decision, participate in any action or cast a 
vote involving any matter that is before the Board which may result in a private benefit to themselves, 
their immediate relatives or their business interest.  A member may be excused from voting on a 
particular issue under the following circumstances: 
 

1. If the member has a direct financial interest in the outcome of the matter at hand; or 
 
2. If the matter at hand involves the member's own official conduct; or 
 
3. If the member has such close personal ties to the applicant that he/she cannot reasonably be 

expected to exercise sound and impartial judgment on behalf of the public’s interest.  
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 If a Board member determines that he/she may have a conflict of interest on a particular issue, 
he/she shall declare the nature of such conflict and ask to be excused from voting on the issue related to 
such conflict.  The remaining regular members, by majority vote, shall determine whether such conflict 
exists and whether said member may excuse himself/herself from further deliberations on said matter.  If 
a member is excused from voting, he/she shall remove himself/herself from the meeting room during all 
deliberations pertaining to such matter.  In no instance may a member be excused from voting merely 
due to an unwillingness to vote on the issue at hand and where no conflict of interest is found to exist. 
 
 A challenge to the existence of a conflict of interest or a challenge of an undisclosed conflict of 
interest may be filed by any interested party with the Board.  Such a challenge may be an appeal for a 
review of the findings of the Board or may be for the purpose of alleging an undeclared conflict of 
interest.  Any challenge made to the Board shall be supported by competent evidence and shall be 
submitted at a properly convened meeting of the Board.  The Board shall hear all evidence and, by 
majority vote of the remaining regular members, shall make the final determination as to the existence 
of a conflict of interest. 
 
 In the event a Board member is found to have a conflict of interest and is excused from voting by 
the Board, he/she shall be replaced by an alternate member for that business associated with the conflict 
of interest. 
 
 All Board members may sign a Conflict of Interest form as requested by the Village Council, 
which does not preclude appointment to the Board. 
 
D. Discussion of Board Cases 
 
 Board members shall refrain from discussing upcoming matters of business with any parties, 
including other Board members, prior to the meeting at which such items are to be publicly discussed; 
provided however, that members may receive and/or seek general technical information pertaining to the 
case from the Secretary or Zoning Administrator prior to the Board meeting at which the case is to be 
heard. 
 
 

IV.  MEETINGS 
 
A. Regular Meetings 
 
 Meetings of the Board shall be held at the Village of Marvin Village Hall as meetings warrant 
provided that meetings may be held at any other conveniently located place in the Marvin area as 
directed by the Chairman in advance of the meeting.  The Secretary shall notify each member (including 
the alternate members) of each meeting. 
 
B. Special Meetings 
 
 Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the Chairman provided that at least 
forty-eight (48) hours written notice of the time and place of a special meeting be given, by the 
Secretary, to each member of the Board including the alternate members. 
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C.   Voting 

 
 The Board shall not pass upon an appeal or application for a variance when there are less than 
four (4) voting members present.  No more than five (5) regular and alternate members may vote on any 
matter for which a public hearing was held.  Unless as otherwise specified, voting on procedural matters 
which does not necessitate a public hearing shall include all regular and alternate members in 
attendance.  The Chairman shall be able to vote on any matter, including making a motion.  An 
unauthorized abstention from voting from a member in attendance shall be considered as a “yea” vote.  
Only members who are in attendance shall be able to vote.   
 
 No Board member shall vote on any matter deciding an application or appeal unless he/she shall 
have attended the public hearing on that application.  
 
D. Conduct of Meetings 
 
 All meetings shall be open to the public.  The order of business at meetings shall be as follows: 
 

1. Determination of Quorum 
2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings  
3. Hearing of Cases 
4.  Other Business 
5. Adjourn 

 
E. Continuation of Meetings 
 
 Meetings may be continued from one date to another provided that the reconvened meeting is 
held in a conveniently located meeting site in the Marvin area. 
 
 

V.  APPEALS, APPLICATIONS, PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
A. Types of Appeals 
 
 The Board shall hear and decide all appeals from and review any order, requirement, decision, or 
determination made by the Zoning Administrator.   
 
B. Procedure for Filing Applications 
 
 The Board shall hear no appeal unless a completed application for an appeal is filed within thirty 
(30) days after the interested party or parties received written notice of the order, requirement, decision, 
or determination by the Zoning Administrator.  Applications for variances and appeals shall be heard no 
less than fourteen (14) days after the completed application is filed with the Zoning Administrator.  
Provided, however, that the Board shall hear the case within forty (40) days from the date of submittal of 
the complete application.  All applications shall be made upon the form furnished by the Village for that 
purpose, and all information required thereon shall be complete before an application shall be 
considered as having been filed. 
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C. Fees 
 
 A fee, in accordance with a fee schedule adopted by the Village Council shall accompany an 
application for an appeal or variance.  No application shall be considered complete unless accompanied 
by the fee as herein prescribed. 
 
D. Public Hearing Mandate 
 
 A public hearing conducted by the Board shall be required to decide all appeals and 
interpretations and to grant any variances to the terms of the Ordinance  
 
E. Conduct of Hearing 
 
 Any Board public hearing shall be conducted in a quasi-judicial manner.  Any party may appear 
in person or by agent or by attorney at the hearing.  The Chairman shall place all persons presenting 
evidence before the Board under oath and the opposing party may cross-examine them.  Unless 
otherwise determined by the Chairman, the order of business for public hearings shall be as follows: 
 

1. The Chairman or such person as he/she shall direct, shall give a preliminary statement of the 
case; 

 
2. Persons giving testimony shall be asked to be sworn in. 
 
3. The applicant shall present the argument in support of his application; 
 
4. Persons opposed to granting the application shall present the argument against the 

application; 
 
5. Other persons in favor of granting the application shall present the argument for the 

application; 
 
6. Both sides will be permitted to present rebuttals to opposing testimony; 
 
7.  The Chairman, or his designee, shall summarize the evidence that has been presented, giving 

parties the opportunity to make objections or corrections.   
 
8. The Chairman shall close the period for public discussion.  The Board shall publicly discuss 

the case without further input from the public.  Board members, however, may seek input, 
clarification, etc. from persons eligible to give evidence who are seated in the audience on 
any piece of evidence heretofore presented.  Cross-examination and rebuttals may be made 
only on any such new evidence presented. 

 
9. The Board shall render a decision on the matter or, if it so chooses, continue the public 

hearing to a publicly stated date, time, and location at least forty-eight (48) hours thereafter.  
A final decision on a case shall be made no later than thirty (30) days after the public hearing 
was opened or at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Adjustment 
following the hearing, whichever occurs later. 
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 The Chairman shall have the authority to put fair and reasonable time limits on persons speaking 
at the public hearing in order to facilitate discussion and to have the meeting conducted in a time-
efficient manner. 

 
F. Re-hearings 
 
 An application for a rehearing may be made in the same manner as provided for in the original 
hearing.  All applications for re-hearings shall be made within fifteen (15) days after the decision of the 
Board has been filed in its office.  Evidence in support of the application shall initially be limited to that 
which is necessary to enable the Board to determine whether there has been a substantial change in the 
facts, evidence, or conditions in the case.  The application for rehearing shall be denied by the Board if, 
from the record, it finds that there has been no substantial change in facts, evidence, or conditions.  If the 
Board finds that there has been a change, it shall there upon treat the request in the same manner as any 
other application.  The Board shall not be required to hold a public hearing to determine whether or not a 
rehearing of the case shall be conducted.  Said determination shall, however, require a four-fifths vote of 
the regular membership.  
 
G. Decisions 
 

1. Form 
 
 Written notice of the decision in a case shall be sent by certified mail or hand-delivered to the 

applicant and to every aggrieved party who has filed a written request for such notice with 
the Secretary or the Chairman when the hearing is held by the Secretary, within five (5) 
working days after the case is decided.  The final decision of the Board shall be filed in the 
Village Clerk’s Office.  The final decision shown in the record of the case shall be entered in 
the minutes of the Board.  Such record shall show the reasons for the determination, with a 
summary of the evidence introduced and the findings of fact made by the Board. 

 
2. Voting at Hearings 
 
 The concurring vote of four-fifths of the members of the Board (i.e., at least four (4) voting 

members) shall be necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision, or determination of 
the Zoning Administrator, or to decide in favor of the applicant any matter upon which the 
Board is required by Ordinance to pass.  Voting on any issue shall be done by a show of 
hands or by voice, as directed by the Chairman.  An abstention shall be counted as a “yes” 
vote. 

 
H. Any person or persons, jointly or severally, aggrieved by any decision of the Board, may, within 

thirty (30) days after the Board's decision has been filed or after a written copy thereof is 
delivered to every aggrieved party who has filed a written request for such copy with the 
Secretary or Chairman at the time of its hearing of the case, whichever is later, present to a court 
of competent jurisdiction a petition duly verified, setting forth that such decision is illegal, in 
whole or in part, specifying the grounds of illegality, whereupon such decision of said Board 
shall be subject to review by the Superior Court by proceedings in the nature of certiorari as 
provided by law. 
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VI.  AMENDMENTS  
 
 These rules, within the limits allowed by law, may be amended at any time by an affirmative 
vote of a majority of the entire membership of the Board, provided that such amendment is presented in 
writing at the meeting preceding the meeting at which the vote is taken. 
 
Adopted, this 21st day of September, 2000. 
Amended this 16th  day of January, 2007. 
Amended this 23rd day of February, 2010. 
 
 
       
 John Baresich, Chairman of the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest:   
 Melody A. Graham, Clerk 



GENERAL 

 

DO
s •Stay on the subject of discussion

•Be concise

•Speak in order, politely, and 
respectfully

•Inform the Clerk if you are aware of a 
situation where a quorum may be 
present outside of a meeting

•Meet one on one with other Board 
members and Email Staff without 
CC'ing other members

•Complete reading and homework 
before meeting as it will make the 
meeting go faster and be more 
complete

DO
N

'T
s •Discuss a topic not on the agenda

•Stray from the subject at hand

•Yell or talk over one another

•Reply to all in an email chain, as it 
constitutes a quorum (Staff will BCC 
members in emails)

•Meet in groups where a majority of 
the Committee is present

•Attend a meeting unprepared

•Speak for the whole Board when in 
private or on social media



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

 

DO
s • Review the packet and case 

materials thoroughly before the 
meeting.

• Ask staff any questions you have 
prior to the meeting.

• Listen and take notes. This will 
be helpful to forming motions 
based on the evidence 
presented.

• Decide the case based on factual 
evidence: the application, 
photos, site/building plans, staff 
reports, and expert testimony

DO
N

'T
s • Discuss a case prior to the 

hearing. You must remain 
unbaised, as your decision must 
be based solely on the evidence 
presented. 

• Argue with the applicant or 
anyone present at the meeting.

• Decide a case based on opinion.

• Contact the applicant after the 
meeting regarding the case.



 

Adjournment

To formally adjourn the meeting, someone will need to make a motion:
“I make a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9pm.”

Other Business

This is where agenda items, other than cases, are addressed. These are usually housekeeping/administrative item. 
Example: this orientation, adopting a meeting schedule, etc.

Hearing of Cases

"Hearing of Cases" is where the Board will complete the bulk 
of its work. Cases can include variances, appeals of staff decisions, etc.

Adoption of the Minutes
The motion for adopting the minutes mirror the agenda:
“I make a motion to adopt the minutes for 10/1/20 as 

presented.”

For this Board, seconds are required and a majority rules.
When discussing and/or voting on a matter, Board members 

present physically and virtually have the same privileges.

Adoption of the Agenda
To adopt the agenda, a Board member must make a “motion” 

to do so, such as: 
“I make a motion to adopt the agenda as presented.”

Board members may only request to remove items from the 
agenda, as all Board Meetings are special called meetings. If 

changes are made the motion would read:
“I make a motion to adopt the agenda as amended.”

Call to Order & Determination of Quorum
The Chair calls the meeting to order. The Vice-Chair will serve 

as Chair when the Chair is absent and will have all the 
associated privileges.

The Chair determines whether a quorum (a majority of 
members) is present. However, four members must be 

present to approve variances.
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